

highways, municipal streets and township roads and expedited completion of the interstate highway system in Minnesota by paying the state share of interstate highway segments, and a portion of the local share of interstate highway substitution projects when those interstate substitution projects are approved in accordance with state and federal law.

Sec. 17. Notwithstanding the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 282.01, the commissioner of revenue shall transfer and convey, without monetary consideration and by quitclaim deed in a form approved by the attorney general, in the name of the state of Minnesota, to the city of Minneapolis, all of the interest of the state in the following described tract of land situated in the county of Hennepin:

Portions of D.L. Peck's rearrangement of D.L. Peck's Addition to Minneapolis, namely Block 3 including the alley in said block, now vacated; that part of the North Half of 37th Avenue North, now vacated, lying between extensions across it of the Easterly and Westerly lines of said Block 3; and that part of 1 1/2 Street North, now vacated, lying between extensions across it of the North line of said Block 3 and the center line of 37th Avenue North.

Block 4 including the alley in said block, now vacated; that portion of the South half of 37th Avenue North, now vacated, lying between extensions across it of the Easterly and Westerly lines of said Block 4; and that part of 1 1/2 Street North, now vacated, lying between extensions across it of the South line of said Block 4 and the center line of 37th Avenue North

according to the plat thereof on file or of record in the office of the Register of Deeds in and for said Hennepin County.

The described land is registered land evidenced by Certificate of Title No. 247556.

The conveyance shall state that the state of Minnesota releases to the city of Minneapolis any interest that may have been reserved in prior conveyances, except mineral interest.

Sec. 18. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This act is effective the day following final enactment.

Approved June 1, 1981

CHAPTER 362 — H.F.No. 1474

An act relating to public improvements; authorizing the acquisition and betterment of public land and buildings and other public improvements of a capital nature with certain conditions; authorizing issuance of state bonds; appropriating money; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 121.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. PUBLIC LAND AND BUILDINGS; APPROPRIATIONS.

The sums set forth in the column designated "APPROPRIATIONS" are appropriated from the state building fund, or any other fund designated, to the state agencies indicated, to be expended for the acquisition and betterment of public land and buildings and other public improvements of a capital nature, as more specifically described in the following sections of this act.

SUMMARY

EDUCATION	\$14,145,300
STATE UNIVERSITIES	1,621,000
COMMUNITY COLLEGES	620,000
UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA	38,057,100
BOND SALE EXPENSES	50,000
TOTAL	54,493,400
Building Fund	54,493,400

APPROPRIATIONS

Sec. 2. EDUCATION.

Subdivision 1. To the state board of education for post-secondary vocational-technical construction in the school districts listed in this subdivision

\$14,145,300

Independent School District No. 241, Albert Lea

\$253,000

The total cost of the project shall not exceed \$297,000 whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 31, Bemidji

654,500

The total cost of the construction shall not exceed \$770,000, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 917, Dakota County

300,000

The total cost of the construction shall not exceed \$352,000, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 22, Detroit Lakes

318,700

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

The total cost of the construction shall not exceed \$375,000, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 595, East Grand Forks 680,000

The total cost of the construction shall not exceed \$800,000, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 894, Granite Falls 362,000

The total cost of the construction shall not exceed \$425,900, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 324, Jackson 234,000

The total cost of the construction shall not exceed \$275,000, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 77, Mankato 234,000

This appropriation is for construction at the main campus of the Mankato Area Vocational Technical Institute.

The total cost of the project shall not exceed \$275,000, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 916 203,000

The local portion of the cost of this project is \$87,000.

The total cost of the construction shall not exceed \$290,000, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 152, Moorhead 202,000

The total cost of the construction shall not exceed \$237,400, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 742, St. Cloud 1,100,000

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

The local portion of the cost of this project shall be a minimum of \$194,000 and a maximum of \$900,000. The total cost of the project shall not exceed \$2,000,000, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 625, St. Paul

3,825,000

This appropriation is for a construction project on the grounds of the main campus of the St. Paul Technical Vocational Institute.

The total cost of the project shall not exceed \$4,500,000, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 793, Staples

3,059,000

This amount shall not be paid unless the district, with the approval of the voters as provided in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475, finances \$741,000 of the cost of the post-secondary vocational-technical construction project approved in this clause through the issuance of local bonds.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 124.564, starting in fiscal year 1983, the district shall not receive post-secondary vocational debt service aid for the state portion of debt service costs with respect to bonds issued in 1960 and that portion of bonds issued in 1969 and in 1971 to finance the "South Campus" post-secondary vocational-technical wing of the district's high school building and interest thereon, but instead, starting with the levy certified in 1981, shall provide fully for the payments due on these bonds and interest thereon through local tax levies as provided in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475.

The total cost of the new construction project shall not exceed \$3,849,100, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Joint Independent School District No. 287, Suburban Hennepin

1,533,900

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

The local portion of the cost of this project shall be a minimum of \$655,200 and a maximum of \$1,210,100. The total cost of the project including money from post-secondary vocational, secondary vocational, and special education services shall not exceed \$2,744,000, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 819,
Wadena 698,300

The local portion of the cost of this project shall be a minimum of \$121,500 and a maximum of \$253,900. The total cost of the project shall not exceed \$952,200, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 347, Will-
mar 187,900

The total cost of the construction shall not exceed \$221,000, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Independent School District No. 861, Wi-
nona 300,000

The local portion of this project shall be a minimum of \$53,000 and a maximum of \$1,000,000. The total cost of the construction shall not exceed \$1,300,000, whether paid from state, local, or federal money.

Subd. 2. The Minneapolis area vocational-technical institute shall provide temporary space for the Minneapolis community college during the period in which the college is undergoing construction.

Sec. 3. STATE UNIVERSITIES.

Subdivision 1. To the commissioner of administration for the purposes more specifically described in the following subdivisions of this section 1,621,000

Subd. 2. Winona Campus Rehabilitate
Somsen Hall 700,000

This appropriation is for the following projects:

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

(1) Replace windows	399,000
(2) Install elevator	225,000
(3) Architect fees and other related expenses	76,000

The state university board may transfer amounts among clauses (1) to (3) as needed.

Subd. 3. Moorhead Campus Rehabilitate Lommen Hall	800,000
---	---------

Subd. 4. Mankato Campus Improve heating, ventilation, and air conditioning at Armstrong Hall	121,000
--	---------

Sec. 4. COMMUNITY COLLEGES.

Subdivision 1. To the commissioner of administration for the purposes more specifically described in the following subdivisions of this section	620,000
---	---------

Subd. 2. Preparation of plans for expansion of college center, and physical education classroom facilities at Vermillion and Rainy River community colleges	120,000
---	---------

Subd. 3. Roof replacement, construct roads and parking lots	500,000
---	---------

Sec. 5. UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA.

Subdivision 1. To the regents of the University of Minnesota for the purposes more specifically described in the following subdivisions of this section	38,057,100
---	------------

Subd. 2. Minneapolis Campus	18,284,000
-----------------------------	------------

(a) Construct two interconnected buildings on the West Bank to serve the needs of the Hubert H. Humphrey Institute and the College of Business Administration	16,484,000
---	------------

\$480,000 of this appropriation is for planning and working drawings for the Hubert H. Humphrey Institute. Upon completion of the working drawings, the regents shall report to the house appropriations and senate finance committees on the progress and cost of the project.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

The two buildings shall be designed and constructed in a manner which avoids duplication between facilities and duplication of existing facilities. The buildings shall maximize access and sharing of facilities common to both programs. Construction of either facility may commence following completion of working drawings. The total cost shall not exceed \$16,484,000. This total amount is less than the amount requested by the regents. The regents shall apportion the reduction to each of the buildings in proportion to the number of gross square feet in the regents' request for the two buildings.

(b) Complete basement space in Kolthoff Hall	900,000
(c) Prepare working drawings for remodeling Smith Hall	900,000
The total cost of this project shall not exceed \$22,000,000.	
Subd. 3. St. Paul Campus	17,300,000
Construct agronomy and plant genetics, plant pathology, and soil science building	
Subd. 4. Duluth Campus	851,000
(a) Construct greenhouse	319,000
(b) Business building remodeling	532,000
Subd. 5. Morris Campus Remodel Behmler Hall	320,000
Subd. 6. Waseca Campus	551,000
Construct livestock laboratory and holding facility	
Subd. 7. Crookston Campus	52,800
Prepare plans for Owen Hall remodeling	
Subd. 8. Southern Experiment Station Waseca	184,800
Construct dairy heifer facility	
This building is considered an agricultural building and is exempt from the provisions of the state designer selection board and	

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

the state building code relating to public buildings.

Subd. 9. The Northwest Experiment Station - Crookston 20,000

Construct chemical storage facility

Subd. 10. Southwest Experiment Station - Lamberton 154,500

Construct a field laboratory and addition to plot building

Subd. 11. North Central Experiment Station - Grand Rapids

The board of regents is authorized to purchase, using nonstate funds only, a 39 acre parcel of land near the North Central Experiment Station at Grand Rapids.

Subd. 12. Hormel Institute 339,000

Completion and equipping of animal research facility

Sec. 6. BOND SALE EXPENSES.

To the commissioner of finance for bond sale expenses pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 16A.64, Subdivision 4. 50,000

Sec. 7. BOND SALE; DEBT SERVICE.

To provide the money appropriated in this act from the state building fund the commissioner of finance upon request of the governor shall sell and issue bonds of the state in an amount up to \$54,495,000 in the manner, upon the terms, and with the effect prescribed by Minnesota Statutes, Sections 16A.63 to 16A.67 and by the Constitution, Article XI, Sections 4 to 7.

Sec. 8. CONSULTATION REQUIRED.

No land shall be purchased and no buildings shall be purchased, constructed, or erected on lands of the University of Minnesota until the regents have first consulted with the chairman of the senate finance committee and the chairman of the house appropriations committee and obtained their recommendations, which are advisory only.

Sec. 9. REVIEW OF PLANS.

The commissioner of administration and the board of regents of the University of Minnesota shall not prepare final plans and specifications for any construction or major remodeling authorized by this act until the using agency

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

or department has presented the program and schematic plans to the chairman of the house appropriations committee and the chairman of the senate finance committee and the chairmen have made their recommendations thereon. The recommendations are advisory only. Failure or refusal to make a recommendation promptly is deemed a negative recommendation.

Sec. 10. APPROPRIATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION; TRANSFER.

Upon the awarding of final contracts for the completion of any project for construction or other permanent improvement authorized by this act, the commissioner of administration and the board of regents of the University of Minnesota as to appropriations made to them may transfer any unencumbered balance in the project account to any other project enumerated in the same section of the appropriation act as the project about to be completed. The money transferred pursuant to this section is appropriated for the purposes for which transferred. The commissioner of administration and the board of regents of the University of Minnesota shall report to the chairman of the house appropriations committee and the chairman of the senate finance committee on any transfer made pursuant to this section.

Sec. 11. APPROPRIATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION; FEDERAL MONEY; EXCEEDING AUTHORIZED COST.

The commissioner of administration and the board of regents of the University of Minnesota shall apply for the maximum federal share for each capital improvement project for which money is appropriated by this act. Encumbrance or expenditure of money in excess of the project authorization shall be made only after the commissioner of administration and the board of regents, as appropriate, have consulted with the chairman of the house appropriations committee and the chairman of the senate finance committee and the chairmen have made their recommendations thereon. The recommendations are advisory only. Failure or refusal to make a recommendation promptly is deemed a negative recommendation.

Sec. 12. METHODS OF ACQUISITION.

Where money has been appropriated by this act to the commissioner of administration to acquire lands or sites for public buildings or real estate, acquisition may be by gift, purchase, or condemnation proceedings. Condemnation proceedings shall be pursuant to chapter 117.

Sec. 13. [121.2155] VOCATIONAL-TECHNICAL BUILDING APPROPRIATIONS.

Money appropriated from the state building fund to the state board of education for post-secondary vocational-technical construction in school districts shall be used for grants to school districts for the acquisition and

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

betterment of land, buildings, and capital improvements for area vocational-technical institutes. These grants shall only be made upon the conditions and in accordance with all standards and criteria established in state board rules and in the legislative act authorizing the specific post-secondary vocational facilities project. A grant shall cover 85 percent of the cost of the post-secondary vocational facilities authorized by the specific legislative act, and 15 percent of the cost of these facilities shall be financed by the school district operating the post-secondary vocational-technical school, unless otherwise provided by the specific legislative act. No local bonds shall be authorized, issued, or sold, nor shall any election be held to authorize the issuance of bonds, if the proceeds will be used to finance a project for which specific legislative approval is required, until after that specific legislative approval has been given.

Sec. 14. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This act is effective the day following final enactment.

Approved June 1, 1981

CHAPTER 363 — H.F.No. 553

An act relating to transportation; providing for the financing of certain services of the department of transportation; adjusting the motor vehicle registration tax on certain vehicles; increasing the fee for personalized license plates; defining and clarifying certain gross weights; providing for temporary farm truck licenses; increasing the tax on gasoline; increasing fees for motorized bicycle operator permits and for driver licenses; establishing a fee for the Minnesota identification card; providing for uniform application fees; requiring reexamination before issuance of new drivers license after revocation; authorizing married applicants to use their maiden name as their middle name; increasing bicycle registration fees; providing that the proceeds of the motor vehicle excise tax be allocated between the general fund, the transit assistance fund, and the highway user tax distribution fund for a certain period, and thereafter the proceeds to be deposited in the highway user tax distribution and transit assistance fund; providing for financial assistance for local transit service; providing for the coordination and financing of metropolitan transit service demonstration program; establishing a metropolitan transit service demonstration program; providing for alternative uses of metropolitan transit tax levies; authorizing the cities of Moorhead and Duluth to increase its mill rate for public transportation services; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 84.87, Subdivision 2; 168.011, Subdivisions 7, 10, 16, 17, and 25; 168.013, Subdivisions 1a, 1b, 1c, 1d, 1e, 1f, 1g, 1h, 2, 3 and by adding a subdivision; 168.017, Subdivisions 1 and 3; 168.12, Subdivisions 2 and 2a; 168.16; 168.27, Subdivision 16; 168C.11, Subdivision 1; 169.11; 169.79; 169.95; 171.02, Subdivision 3; 171.04; 171.06, Subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4 and by adding a subdivision; 171.07, Subdivisions 1, 3 and by adding a subdivision; 171.17; 171.29; 174.23, Subdivision 1; 174.24, Subdivision 3, and by adding a subdivision; 174.31; 296.02, Subdivision 1; 297B.035, Subdivision 2;

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.